
151 

But to ensure the establishment of the right 
of correction, it was necessary to use discretion. 

He thought that the suggestions of the re
presentative of Lebanon tended to make the text 
more accurate. It was advisable, however, to take 
care that newspapers were not burdened with long 
communiques, and he asked the Lebanese repre
sentative if he would approve the inclusion of 
a statement to the effect that the versions of the 
facts should be of appropriate length. 

Mr. ZAYDIN (Cuba) thanked the French dele
gation for its amendment, which improved the 
original text. He thought that the suggestions 
of the Netherlands and Indian representatives 
were both excellent. He preferred, however, that 
the expression "news dispatches" should be used. 

He also approved the Indian representative's 
amendment to add the phrase: "A copy of such 
comm.unique shall be forwarded to the corres
pondents or the information agencies at the same 
time", and the Lebanese representative's sugges
tion to add the words "of a Contracting or non
contracting State" after the words "information 
agencies" at the beginning of article B. 

As to the Polish amendment, he thought that 
the French proposal already covered the purpose 
of that amendment, as it stated that news reports 
capable of injuring the relations of a Contract
ing State with other Contracting States might 
give rise to correction. In support of his amend
ment, the Polish representative had not advanced 
any new argument. He had repeated that in the 
United States and United Kingdom the Press 
was in the hands of monopolies and that it served 
only the interests of capitalism. The Cuban repre
sentative stressed the fact that the United States 
and the United Kingdom were democratic coun
tries and that all their newspapers were published 
freely, whatever the ideology they defended. It 
was possible that the countries where the State 
was all-powerful, and where no opposition was 
permitted, did not interpret freedom in the same 
way as liberal and democratic countries. 

Mr. Zaydin agreed with the high principles 
which inspired the Mexican amendment and 
would vote for it, although it could be assumed 
that the French proposal was sufficient. He would 
also vote for the second part of the Mexican 
amendment. 

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m. 

HUNDRED AND NINETY
SEVENTH MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New Y ark, 
on Thursday, 21 April 1949, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. H. Smitt INGEBRETSEN (Norway), 
Later, Mr. Charles MALIK (Lebanon). 

132. Freedom of information: report 
of the Economic and Social Conn· 
cil (A/ 631) (continued) 

DRAFT CONVENTION ON THE INTERNATIONAL 
TRANSMISSION OF NEWS AND THE RIGHT OF 
CORRECTION (Ej1065 AND AjC.3j425) (CON
TINUED) 

Article B (AjC.3/425) (continued) 
The CHAIRMAN called for continuation of the 

discussion of the French proposal for the in-

d'un pays. T outefois, pour pouvoir realiser I' ins
titution du droit de rectification, il faut agir avec 
prudence. 

A propos des suggestions du representant du 
Liban, il estime qu'elles rendraient le texte plus 
precis. I1 convient cependant de veiller a ce que 
les journaux ne soient pas encombres de commu
niques trops longs, et M. Terrou demande au 
representant du Liban s'il pourrait accepter que 
l'on indique que la version des faits sera d'une 
longueur convenable. 

M. ZAYDIN (Cuba) remercie la delegation de 
la France, dont l'amendement ameliore le texte 
primitif. I1 estime que les suggestions du represen
tant des Pays-Bas et de la representante de l'Inde 
sont toutes deux excellentes. Mais il prefere cepen
dant que l'on emploie !'expression "depeches d'in
formation". 

I1 est egalement d'accord avec la proposition de 
la representante de l'Inde, tendant a ajouter la 
phrase: "Un exemplaire de ce communique sera 
envoye au correspondant ou a l'entreprise d'infor
mation en meme temps qu'aux Etats contractants", 
ainsi qu'avec la suggestion du representant du 
Liban tendant a ajouter: "d'un Etat contractant 
ou non" apres les mots: "entreprises d'informa
tion", au debut de !'article B. 

A propos de l'amendement polonais, il estime 
que la proposition de la France repond deja au 
but de cet amendement, puisqu'il y est indique que 
les informations de nature a nuire aux relations 
d'un Etat contractant avec d'autres Etats contrac
tants pourront donner lieu a rectification. A l'appui 
de son amendement, le representant de la Pologne 
n'a avance aucun argument nouveau. I1 a repete 
que la presse des Etats-Unis et du Royaume-Uni 
etait aux mains de monopoles et qu' elle servait 
uniquement les interets du capitalisme. Le repre
sentant de Cuba souligne que les Etats-Unis et le 
Royaume-Uni sont des pays democratiques et que 
tous les journaux y sont publies librement, quelle 
que soit l'ideologie qu'ils defendent. I1 est possible 
que les pays ou l'Etat est tout puissant et ou 
aucune opposition n'est permise ne comprennent 
pas la liberte de la meme fa<;on que les pays 
liberaux et democratiques. 

M. Zaydin est d'accord avec les principes nobles 
qui inspirent l'amendement du Mexique et il votera 
en sa faveur, bien que l'on puisse supposer que la 
proposition de la France soit suffisante. I1 votera 
egalement pour la seconde partie de l'amendement 
mexicain. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 5. 

CENT QUATRE-VINGT-DIX-SEPTIEME 
SEANCE 

T enue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le jeudi 21 avril 1949, a 15 heures. 

President: M. H. Smitt lNGEBRETSEN (Norvege), 
puis M. Charles MALIK (Liban). 

132. Liberte de I' information: rapport 
du Conseil economique et social 
(A/631) (suite) 

PROJET DE CoNVENTION RELATIF A. LA TRANS
MISSION INTERNATIONALE DES INFORMATIONS 
ET AU DROIT DE RECTIFICATION (E/1065 ET 
A/C.3/425) (SUITE) 

Article B (AjC.3j425) (suite) 
Le PRESIDENT invite la Commission a pour

suivre la discussion de la proposition de la France 



152 

sertion of a section incorporating the draft con
vention on the institution of an international right 
of correction into the draft convention on the 
gathering and international transmission of news 
(A/C.3j425). The Committee would take as its 
basic text document A/C.3j468, which was a 
recapitulation of amendments to the French pro
posal. Explaining that article A of the original 
text proposed by France had been withrawn, he 
pointed out that a revised version of the text 
of article B as proposed by France had been 
circulated in document AjC.3jW.14. 

Mr. DAvms (United Kingdom) was prepared 
to accept the suggestion made by the Nether
lands representive at the 196th meeting to the 
effect that the words "news dispatches" should 
be substituted for the words "news reports" 
and that the words "of a Contracting or non
contracting State" should be inserted after the 
words "information agencies" in the French pro
posal. He would accept the insertion of the words 
"or distortion" after the words "alleged inac
curacy" proposed by the Indian representative 
at the previous meeting as in effect an amendment 
to the United Kingdom amendment (A/C.3/450). 

With regard to the Indian proposal that a 
final sentence should be added, reading as fol
lows: "A copy of such communique shall be 
forwarded to the correspondent or the informa
tion agency at the same time as to the Contract
ing States", he would accept it on the under
standing that the communiques would be sent 
only to the agency or correspondent responsible 
for originating the offending item, not to all the 
bureaux of the agency or correspondents of 
the newspaper; that would be too complicated. 
He suggested the insertion of the word "con
cerned" after the word "agency" in the additional 
sentence. 

Mrs. RAY (India) accepted that suggestion. 

Mr. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands) 
thought it inadvisable to substitute the words 
"news material" for the words "news reports" 
in the first sentence. If the definition which the 
Committee had adopted (I 87th meeting) in arti
cle 1 were applied, the right of correction might 
be extended indefinitely to cover political car
toons, caricatures, pictures and matrices as well 
as newsreels. Such an extension, while excellent 
in principle, would prove impossible in practice. 

With regard to the first Mexican amendment 
to the second draft convention (A/C.3/417), 
Mexico might have a clear and concrete idea 
of what constituted national prestige and dignity; 
his own country had not. If such a concept were 
included, the way might be opened to all kinds of 
complaints, the airing of which might have most 
undesirable consequences. 

The proposed French text (A/C.3jW.14) 
was therefore preferable. 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) supported the French 
and United Kingdom texts and opposed the 
Polish amendment to article 1 of the second 
draft convention (A/C.3/452) on the same 
grounds as those on which she had opposed 

(AjC.3j425); celle-ci tend a inserer une section 
incorporant le projet de convention relatif a !'ins
titution du droit de rectification en matiere inter
nationale dans le projet de convention relatif 
a l'acces aux informations et a leur transmission 
d'un pays a !'autre. La Commission prendra comme 
texte de base le document AjC.3j468, qui con
tient la proposition fran~aise et les amendements 
qui y ont ete proposes. II precise que !'article 
A du texte propose primitivement par la France 
a ete retire et indique qu'une version revisee du 
texte de !'article B, proposee par la France, a 
ete distribuee sous la cote AjC.3jW.l4. 

M. DAVIES (Royaume-Uni) est dispose a accep
ter les suggestions formulees par le representant 
des Pays-Bas a la 196eme seance, tendant a 
remplacer le mot "informations" par les mots 
"depeches d'information", eta inserer dans la pro
position de la France les mots "d'un Etat con
tractant ou non" apres les mots "entreprises d'in
formation". II accepte d'inserer les mots "ou 
la deformation" a pres "!'inexactitude", comme I' a 
propose le representant de l'Inde a la derniere 
seance ; cela constituerait en effet un amen dement 
a celui qu'a propose le Royaume-Uni (A/C.3/ 
450). 

II est pret a accepter la proposition de l'Inde 
tendant a ajouter in fine la phrase suivante: "Un 
exemplaire de ce communique sera envoye au 
correspondant ou a l'entreprise d'information en 
meme temps qu'aux Etats contractants"; il doit 
toutefois etre entendu que les communiques seront 
envoyes seulement a l'entreprise ou au correspon
dant, qui aura repandu la fausse information en 
question, et non a tous les bureaux de !'entre
prise ou a tous les correspondants du journal, 
ce qui serait trop complique. II propose d'inserer, 
dans la phrase qu'il est question d'ajouter, le 
mot "interesses" apres le mot "entreprise d'infor
mation". 

Mme RAY (Inde) accepte cette suggestion. 

M. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Pays-Bas) ne 
croit pas qu'il soit utile de remplacer dans la 
premiere phrase le mot "informations" par les 
mots "documents d'information". Si l'on accep
tait la definition que la Commission a adoptee 
(187eme seance) aux termes de !'article premier, 
le droit de rectification pourrait etre etendu inde
finiment, de maniere a s'appliquer aux dessins 
satiriques, aux caricatures, photographies et cli
ches tout aussi bien qu'aux films d'actualites. Bien 
que cela soit fort souhaitable en soi, il serait 
impossible de le realiser en pratique. 

Pour ce qui est du premier amendement pro
pose par le Mexique au deuxieme projet de 
convention (A/C.3/417), il se peut que ce pays 
ait une idee claire et nette de ce qui constitue le 
prestige et Ia dignite nationale; les Pays-Bas ne 
l'ont pas. En introduisant cette notion, on ren
drait possibles des plaintes de toutes sortes, dont 
l'examen en public risquerait d'avoir des conse
quences fort peu souhaitables. 

II prefere done le texte propose par la France 
(A/C.3jW.I4 ). 

Mme FIGUEROA (Chili) appuie les textes soumis 
par Ia France et le Royaume-U ni et se declare 
opposee a l'amendement de la Pologne a !'article 
premier du deuxieme projet de convention (A/C. 
31452), pour Ies memes raisons qui I' ont amenee 



153 

similar Polish proposals whenever they had been 
submitted. 

With regard to the Mexican amendment, the 
principle was excellent; many countries had ex
perienced real damage to their prestige as a 
result of distorted information. The problem 
was not, however, that of defining prestige
that was perfectly possible- but the practical 
application. Certain countries might identify their 
national policies with their prestige and thus use 
the convention for political ends. The aim of the 
section under review was rather to give journa
lists a sense of responsibility than to defend the 
prestige of States. She would therefore reserve 
her opinion on that amendment. 

Mr. DEDIJER (Yugoslavia) believed that the 
article could not constitute a guarantee against 
false and distorted information, as had been 
asserted, so long as it left a loop-hole for the 
propagation of warmongering. The Ukrainian 
representative at the 193rd meeting had cited an 
article in the magazine The Reader's Digest in 
which it had been stated that United States 
pilots were being methodically trained for the 
atomic bombing of industrial cities in the USSR. 
That publication appeared in a large number of 
languages and enjoyed a circulation of 4,200,000 
copies. The information which he had cited would 
be circulated throughout the world. The article 
under discussion could do nothing to prevent 
the circulation of such deleterious news material; 
the only way to do so was to forbid warmonger
ing at the source, before publication. The Polish 
amendment took such a situation into account; he 
would therefore support it. 

The Yugoslav representative could not agree 
that the substitution of the words "news dis
patches" for the words "news reports" could 
be accepted as a mere drafting change. That 
change excluded newsreels, which had an audience 
of millions. 

Mr. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands) 
assured the Yugoslav representative that no sub
stantive change had been intended. The words 
"news reports" did not cover newsreels, and in
troduced a term which had not been defined in 
article 1. 

Mr. AzKOUL (Lebanon) thought that distor
tions originating in the central offices of infor
mation agencies should receive the same treatment 
as those transmitted to them from abroad. Re· 
striction of foreign news dispatches might stultify 
the whole section under discussion. To avoid 
that, he proposed that the phrase begiinning 
"transmitted" and ending with the words "State 
and" should be deleted from the first sentence of 
the revised version of article B (A/C.3jW.l4); 
the phrase beginning with the words "and by 
evidence" and ending "information agency" could 
then also be deleted. 

He objected, furthermore, to a certain vague
ness about the length of the communique referred 
to in the text. The French proposal accorded the 

a s'opposer aux propositions du meme ordre que 
la Pologne a deja soumises. 

Pour ce qui est de l'amendement du Mexique, 
le principe en est excellent; les nouvelles deformees 
ont cause un tort considerable au prestige de 
nombreux pays. Toutefois, il ne s'agit pas de 
donner une definition de ce qui constitue le 
prestige, bien que ce soit parfaitement possible; 
il s'agit de probh!mes d'application pratique. Cer
tains pays pourraient fonder leur politique sur 
des considerations de prestige, et utiliser ainsi 
la convention a des fins politiques, Or, la section 
que la Commission est en train d'examiner a pour 
but d'inculquer aux journalistes le sens de leur 
responsabilite plut6t que de defendre le prestige 
des Etats. Mme Figueroa reserve done son avis 
sur cet amendement. 

M. DEDIJER (Yougoslavie) estime que cet 
article ne saurait, comme on l'a pretendu, consti
tuer une garantie contre les informations fausses 
et deformees ; en effet, il comporte une echappatoire 
qui permet de propager des nouvellees incitant 
a la guerre. Lors de la 193eme seance, le repre
sentant de la RSS d'Ukraine a cite un article 
paru dans la revue The Reader's Digest, et qui 
affirmait que les pilotes des Etats-Unis recevaient 
un entrainement methodique en vue du bombarde
ment atomique des centres industriels de l'URSS. 
Cette publication, qui parait dans un grand nombre 
de langues, a un tirage de 4.200.000 exemplaires. 
L'information en question sera diffusee dans le 
monde entier. L'article en discussion ne peut nulle
ment empecher la diffusion de ces informations 
pemicieuses ; la seule fac;on d'y parvenir con
siste a interdire les nouvelles de nature a inciter 
a la guerre, a leur source meme, c'est-a-dire 
avant publication. L'amendement de la Pologne 
tient compte de cette situation; aussi M. Dedijer 
l'appuiera-t-il. 

Pour le representant de la Y ougoslavie, on ne 
saurait pretendre que la substitution des mots 
"depeches d'information" au mot "informations" 
constitue un simple changement de redaction. Ce 
changement ne tient pas compte des films d'actua
lites que voient des millions de personnes. 

M. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Pays-Bas) assure 
au representant de la Y ougoslavie qu'il n'a voulu 
introduire aucun changement de fond. Le mot 
"informations" ne s'applique pas aux films d'actua
lites, et constitue un terme qui n'a pas ete defini 
a !'article premier. 

M. AzKOUL (Liban) estime qu'on doit proceder 
de la meme fac;on, tant a l'egard des nouvelles 
deformees provenant des bureaux centraux des 
entreprises d'information, qu'a l'egard de celles 
que ces entreprises rec;oivent de l'etranger. En 
restreignant ces dispositions aux depeches d'infor
mation en provenance de l'etranger, on risque 
d' enlever toute valeur a 1' ensemble de la section 
que la Commission est en train d'examiner. Pour 
1' eviter, il propose de supprimer dans la premiere 
phrase de la version revisee de !'article B (A/C.3/ 
W.l4) le membre qui commence par le mot 
"transmises" et se termine par les mots "ou non"; 
on pourrait alors egalement supprimer le membre 
de phrase qui commence par les mots "et de la 
preuve", et qui se termine par les mots "entre
prise d'information". 

En outre, il estime qu'on devrait preciser 
davantage la question de la longueur du commu
nique dont il est question dans le texte. La 



154 

State concerned no right to determine the amount 
of space it might need for the correction. The 
essential aim was to provide for an adequate 
presentation of the facts involved; the question 
of length was purely subsidiary. With regard 
to the objection to the Mexican amendment that 
the words "false or distorted" were broad enough 
to cover injuries to national prestige, the article 
merely referred to injuries to relations between 
States; that objection was not, therefore, valid. 

Mr. TERROU (France), replying to the Leba
nese representative, explained that his delegation 
believed that some sort of restriction both as 
to length and as to matter must be imposed upon 
the communiques. Otherwise, facts might be in
cluded which information agencies would refuse 
to publish for reasons normally regulating the 
profession. The subject matter must be restricted 
because the convention was an international in
strument dealing with the relations between 
States and could not, therefore, be concerned 
with libellous matter which came within domestic 
jurisdiction. 

He was prepared to accept the suggestion made 
by the Indian representative at the 196th meet
ing. 

The Polish amendment was, in his opinion. 
irrelevant, tainted with political implications and 
likely to damage the article. 

The Yugoslav representative had been in error; 
the Netherlands amendment should be regarded 
as merely a drafting change. 

Mr. MENDEZ (Philippines) sympathized with 
the principles of the Polish and Mexican amend
ments but thought that they should be incor
porated in the preamble. The effect of the Polish 
amendment might be to increase governmental 
dictation to the Press. The Mexican amendment 
was too restrictive, as any form of enumeration 
was bound to be. If a State felt that its dignity 
had been impaired, it should protest through the 
regular diplomatic channels. In almost all cases, 
such questions could be safely left to the sense 
of responsibility and observance of journalistic 
ethics characteristic of the free Press, as the Cuban 
representative had asserted at the 196th meeting. 

Because it balanced rights with responsibilities 
he would support the French proposal. 

Mr. TsARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that the representative of Cuba, 
when attacking the Polish amendment, had 
claimed that the Press was free in many coun
tries which supported the United Kingdom and 
United States delegations' objections to that 
amendment, including Cuba itself. In Cuba, 
radio material and films were all imported ; news
papers bought their newsprint in the United 
States ; 90 per cent of their news material was 
supplied by United States information agencies; 
no national agencies could develop owing to the 
pressure of foreign competition; films were either 
of United States origin or distributed by United 
States agencies. That could not be regarded as 
full national freedom. 

proposition de la France ne permet pas a l'Etat 
interesse de determiner la longueur du communi
que dont il pourra avoir besoin pour la recti
fication. II s'agit essentiellement de permettre une 
presentation exacte des faits; Ia question de Ia 
longueur du texte est tout a fait secondaire. 
L'amendement du Mexique a donne lieu a une 
objection selon laquelle les mots "fausse ou erro
nee" ont une portee suffisamment large pour 
s'appliquer aux atteintes infligees au prestige 
national. Or il n'est question, dans cet article, 
que d'informations de nature a nuire aux relations 
entre Etats. Cette objection n'est done pas fondee. 

M. TERROU (France), repondant au represen
tant du Liban, declare que, de l'avis de sa dele
gation, il faut imposer certaines restrictions aux 
communiques, tant en ce qui concerne leur lon
gueur que leur contenu. Autrement, on pourrait 
y inclure des elements que les entreprises d'infor
mation refuseraient de publier pour des raisons 
de pratique professionnelle. L'objet meme du 
communique doit etre reglemente, car la con
vention est un accord international traitant de 
relations entre Etats; elle ne doit done pas s'appli
quer aux informations diffamatoires qui tombent 
sous le coup de la legislation nationale. 

II est pret a accepter les suggestions faites par 
la representante de l'Inde a la 196eme seance. 

Par contre, a son avis, l'amendement polonais 
n'est pas pertinent, comporte des incidences poli
tiques et peut nuire a cet article. 

Le representant de la Y ougoslavie est dans 
l'erreur; l'amendement des Pays-Bas doit etre 
considere comme purement redactionnel. 

M. MENDEZ (Philippines) approuve les idees 
dont s'inspirent les amendements polonais et mexi
cain, mais estime qu'ils doivent etre incorpores 
dans le preambule. L'amendement polonais peut 
avoir pour resultat de permettre plus facilement 
aux gouvernements de faire la loi ~ la presse. 
L'amendement mexicain est trop restrictif, comme 
l'est necessairement toute enumeration. Si un Etat 
estime que sa dignite a ete outragee, il doit 
protester par la voie diplomatique normale. Dans 
presque tous les cas, de telles questions peuvent 
etre reglees grace au sens de la responsabilite 
et au respect des regles professionnelles du journa
lisme qui, comme l'a declare le representant de 
Cuba a la 196eme seance, caracterisent une presse 
libre. 

M. Mendez soutient la proposition fran<;aise, 
qui etablit un equilibre entre les droits et les 
responsabilites. 

M. TsARAPKINE (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare que le representant de 
Cuba, lorsqu'il a critique l'amendement polonais, 
a pretendu que la presse etait libre dans de 
nombreux pays qui ont soutenu les objections 
faites par les delegations du Royaume-Uni et 
des Etats-Unis a cet amendement, et notamment 
a Cuba meme. En ce qui concerne Cuba, tous 
ses films et toutes ses emissions radiophoniques 
viennent de l'etranger; ses journaux achetent leur 
papier aux Etats-Unis; 90 pour 100 de tous les 
documents d'information publies a Cuba sont four
nis par les entreprises d'information des Etats
Unis; la concurrence de l'etranger n'a pas permis 
la formation d'une agence nationale. Les films 
sont, soit d'origine americaine, soit distribues par 
des maisons americaines. On ne peut considerer 
que ce soit la une liberte nationale complete. 



ISS 

Mr. Tsarapkin took issue with arguments that 
the Polish amendment was not sufficiently con
crete, that the inclusion of a ban on threats to the 
peace would undermine the convention and that 
full reliance could be placed upon journalistic 
ethics. The daily papers showed that the last 
point was not accurate; the whole convention 
had in fact been rendered necessary by that fact. 

The article dealt with the correction of alleg
·edly inaccurate facts. Such correction, however, 
would not prevent the dissemination of warmon
gering material, for the simple reason that it was 
not based upon facts. The prevention of warmon
gering and thereby the prevention of widespread 
suffering was far more important than the mere 
correction of inaccuracies; that was the intention 
of the Polish amendment. It had been argued that 
the prevention of warmongering was implicit in 
the French proposal; but the French representa
tive himself had said that that was not so. 

The USSR delegation, furthermore, objected 
in principle to the inclusion of any part of the 
second convention in the first. The legislation 
of certain States contained no provision for ac
cording the right of correction to non-nationals. 
The authors of the convention appeared to be 
attempting to compel those States to revise their 
national legislation by means of an international 
instrument. That was a clear infringement of 
sovereign rights. The purpose of the convention 
was to strengthen friendly relations between na
tions; the article under discussion would have 
the contrary effect. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (Mexico) observed that the re
presentatives of the United Kingdom and Uru
guay had argued that risks had to be taken to 
ensure the freedom of the Press and that the 
publication of inaccuracies would rebound upon 
their authors. In some cases, however, where no 
powerful friendly agency was at hand, the effects 
might go as far as revolution. The United States 
representative had argued that to require the 
correction of affronts to national dignity and 
prestige might endanger the machinery of the 
convention. That danger was very slight, since 
information agencies were not bound to publish 
the communiques: their action or inaction was 
irrelevant to the machinery of the convention. 
On the other hand, the sense of responsibility in
herent in the Press would provide a reasonable 
likelihood of publication. 

Mr. Noriega pointed out that the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights spoke of human 
dignity and the right to a hearing by a public 
tribunal ; similar rights should be accorded to 
States. He regarded the vote on the Mexican 
amendment, therefore, as of historic importam:e. 

He agreed with the Indian amendment. 

Mr. ZAYDIN (Cuba), replying to the repre
sentative of the Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics, rebutted the statement that information 
agencies in his country were not completely free. 
There were newspapers of all shades of political 
opinion in Cuba, including communism. The radio 
was not controlled by the Government ; there 

M. Tsarapkine s'eleve contre les arguments 
de ceux qui affirment que l'amendement polonais 
n'est pas suffisamment concret, que !'inclusion de 
!'introduction des menaces contre la paix compro
mettra la valeur de la convention et qu'on peut 
avoir une entiere confiance dans le respect des 
regles professionnelles du journalisme. La lecture 
des journaux montre que ce dernier point n'est 
pas exact, et c'est precisement ce fait qui rend 
la convention necessaire. 

L'article traite de la rectification d'informa
tions portant sur des faits pretendument inexacts. 
Cette rectification n'empechera pas cependant la 
propagande belliciste parce que celle-ci n' est pas 
basee sur des faits. II est plus important, comme le 
propose l'amendement polonais, d'empecher la pro
pagande belliciste et les souffrances immenses 
qui peuvent en resulter que de rectifier simplement 
des inexactitudes. On a pretendu que le texte 
propose par la delegation fram;aise permet impli
citement d'empecher la propagande belliciste; mais 
le representant de la France a dit lui-meme qu'il 
n' en est pas ainsi. 

D'autre part, la delegation de l'URSS eleve 
des objections de principe contre !'inclusion d'une 
partie quelconque de la deuxieme convention dans 
la premiere. La legislation de certains Etats ne 
contient pas de dispositions accordant le droit de 
rectification aux etrangers. Les auteurs de la 
convention paraissent s'efforcer d'obliger ces Etats, 
par !'adoption d'un instrument international, a 
reviser leur legislation nationale. C'est la une 
violation manifeste de leur souverainete. Le but 
de la convention est de renforcer les relations ami
cates entre les nations; !'article en discussion 
produirait l'effet contraire. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) rappelle que les repre
sentants du Royaume-Uni et de !'Uruguay ont 
dit que, pour assurer la liberte de la presse, i1 
fallait courir certains risques, et que la publi
cation de fausses nouvelles nuirait a leurs auteurs 
eux-memes. Dans certains cas cependant, lorsqu'on 
ne dispose pas d'une entreprise d'information 
importante et bienveillante, les effets de ces 
fausses nouvelles pourront aller jusqu'a une revo
lution. Le representant des Etats-Unis a declare 
qu' en exigeant la rectification des offenses a la 
dignite et au prestige nationaux, on pourrait com
promettre le fonctionnement de la convention. 
Ce danger est minime etant donne que les entre
prises d'information ne sont pas obligees de publier 
les communiques; qu'elles le £assent ou non, le 
fonctionnement de la convention n'en sera pas 
atteint. Ceependant, etant donne le sens de Ia 
responsabilite que possede la presse, on peut 
raisonnablement esperer que ces communiques 
seront publies. 

M. Noriega souligne que la Declaration uni
verselle des droits de l'homme mentionne la di
gnite de l'homme et le droit d'etre entendu devant 
un tribunal public. Des droits semblables doivent 
etre accordes aux Etats. II considere par conse
quent que le vote sur l'amendement du Mexique 
aura une importance historique. 

II accepte l'amendement de l'Inde. 

M. ZAYDIN (Cuba), repondant au represen
tant de !'Union des Republiques socialistes sovie
tiques, dement que les entreprises d'information 
dans son pays ne soient pas entierement libres. 
II existe a Cuba des journaux de toute nuance, 
y compris un quotidien communiste. La radio 
n'est pas sous la domination du gouvernement; il 



156 

were many stations, of sufficient power for the 
reception of news from all over the world. Some 
newspapers were served by the large United 
States news agencies, as papers were in all coun
tries; but they were also served by United King
dom, French and other agencies. Cuban papers 
had correspondents stationed in all countries, 
from which they could transmit news without 
personal jeopardy. 

The amount of newsprint imported from the 
United States was a result of wartime conditions. 
During the war, the United States had supplied 
it without imposing any conditions- as he knew 
personally- about its distribution; the Cuban 
Government had distributed it without regard to 
the ideologies of the newspapers. The current 
tendency was to return to Swedish sources for 
that commodity. 

Cinemas were in the hands of Cubans; even the 
agents of United States producers were Cuban 
nationals. Moreover, Argentine, French, United 
Kingdom, Mexican and even USSR films were 
freely exhibited. The USSR films had been pro
vided through the Soviet Union Embassy in 
Havana; and the only reason why more such films 
were not exhibited was that they were difficult to 
obtain. 

The progress which Cuba had made in popula
tion and industry had been striking. He could not 
permit his country to be maligned on the basis 
of inaccurate information. 

The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to be
gin voting on the revised version of article B 
(AfC.3fW.14) submitted by the French dele
gation and the various amendments thereto. 

He ruled that the suggestion made by the 
Indian representative at the !96th meeting that 
the term "news reports" (in document A/C.3/ 
W.14 "news dispatches") should be replaced by 
"news material" was a question of substance. A 
two-thirds majority would therefore be needed 
if the Committee wished to reverse its previous 
decision about substantive amendments and de
cide to consider the Indian representative's 
amendment. 

He put to the vote the proposal that the sub
stantive amendment submitted by the Indian 
delegation should be considered by the Commit
tee. 

The result of the ~·ate was 12 votes in favour, 
14 against, and 19 abstentions. The proposal 
was rejected. 

The Indian representative's suggestion was 
therefore ruled out of order. 

The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the Polish 
amendment to article 1 of the second draft con
vention (A/C.3/452). 

Mr. BoRATYNSKI (Poland) requested that his 
amendment should be put to the vote by roll-call. 

A vote was taken by roll-call, as follows: 
India, having been drawn by lot by the Chair

man, wa;s called upon to vote first: 
In favour: Poland, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 

Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 
Yugoslavia, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Re
public, Czechoslovakia. 

existe de nombreuses stations qui ant une puis
sance suffisante pour capter les nouvelles du monde 
entier. Certains journaux re<;oivent Ies services 
des grandes agences d'information americaines, 
comme le font Ies journaux dans taus Ies pays, 
mais elles utilisent egalement les services d'agences 
britanniques, fran<;aises et autres. Les journaux 
cubains ant des correspondants dans taus les pays 
du monde, d'ou il leur est loisible de transmettre 
des nouvelles sans courir de risques personnels. 

La quantite de papier-journal importee des 
Etats-Unis est une suite des conditions du temps 
de guerre. Pendant la guerre, les Etats-Unis ant 
fourni le papier sans poser aucune condition au 
sujet de sa distribution; M. Zaydin le sait par 
experience personnelle. Le Gouvernement de Cuba 
!'a distribue sans tenir compte de !'opinion poli
tique des journaux. Actuellement, on tend a 
reprendre Ies achats de papier-journal en Suede. 

Les cinemas sont Ia propriete de Cubains, et 
meme les agents des firmes de cinema americaines 
sont des citoyens cubains. De plus, on montre a 
Cuba en toute Iiberte des films argentins, fran
<;ais, britanniques, mexicains et meme sovietiques. 
Les films sovietiques sont fournis par l'interme
diaire de l'ambassade a La Havane, et si on n'en 
presente pas un plus grand nombre c'est unique
ment a cause de la difficulte que l'on rencontre 
a se les procurer. 

Les progres de Cuba en ce qui concerne sa 
population et son industrie ant ete frappants. 
M. Zaydin ne peut permettre que son pays fasse 
!'objet de diffamations fondees sur des informa
tions inexactes. 

Le PRESIDENT invite Ia Commission a passer au 
vote sur Ia version revisee de !'article B (A/ 
C.3/W.14) soumise par Ia delegation de la 
France, et sur Ies divers amendements a cette 
verswn. 

II decide que Ia proposition presentee a Ia 
196eme seance par Ia representante de I'Inde 
et visant a remplacer Ie terme "informations" 
(dans Ie document A/C.3/W.l4: "depeches d'in
formation") par le terme "documents d'informa
tion" est une question de fond. Une majorite des 
deux tiers sera done necessaire si Ia Commission 
veut revenir sur sa decision anterieure concernant 
Ies amendements de fond et decider d'examiner 
I'amendement de Ia representante de l'Inde. 

II met done aux voix Ia proposition tendant 
a faire examiner par Ia Commission I'amende
ment de fond soumis par Ia delegation de I'Inde. 

It y a 12 voix pour, 14 voix contre et 19 
abstentions. La proposition est rejetee. 

En consequence, l'amendement de l'Inde est 
considere comme irrecevable. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix l'amendement de 
Ia Pologne a !'article premier du deuxieme projet 
de convention (A/C.3/452). 

M. BORATYNSKI (Pologne) demande que }Q 
vote ait lieu par appel nominal. 

It est procede au vote par appel nominal. 
L'appel commence par l'Inde, dont le nom est 

tire au sort par le President. 
Votent pour: Pologne, Republique socialiste 

sovietique d'Ukraine, Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques, Y ougoslavie, Republique socia
liste sovietique de Bie!orussie, Tchecoslovaquie. 



157 

Against: Lebanon, Netherlands, New Zealand, 
Nicaragua, Norway, Panama, Peru, J?hilippi?es, 
Sweden, Turkey, Union of South Afnca, Umted 
Kingdom, United States of America, Venezuela, 
Australia, Belgium, Brazil, Canada, Chile, China, 
Colombia, Cuba, Denmark, Dominican Republic, 
Ecuador, France, Greece, Honduras. 

Abstaining: India, Iran, Mexico, Pakistan, 
Saudi Arabia, Siam, Syria, Afghanistan, Argen
tina, Burma, Egypt, Guatemala, Haiti. 

The amendment was rejected by 28 votes to 
6, with 13 abstentions. 

The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the Mexi
can amendment (A/C.3/417) to the effect that 
the words "or its national prestige and dignity" 
should be inserted after the word "States" at 
the beginning of article 1 of the second draft 
convention. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (Mexico) requested that his 
amendment should be put to the vote by roll
call. 

A vote was taken by roll-call as follows: 
The Union of South Africa, having been drawn 

by lot by the Chairman, voted first: 
In favour : Venezuela, Afghanistan, Argentina, 

Brazil, China, Cuba, Egypt, Guatemala, Haiti, 
Honduras, India, Iran, Lebanon, Mexico, Nicara
gua, Pakistan, Panama, Peru, Saudi Arabia, 
Siam. 

Against: Union of South Africa, United King
dom, United States of America, Australia, Bel
gium, Denmark, France, Greece, Netherlands, 
New Zealand, Norway, Philippines, Sweden. 

Abstaining: Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics, Yugoslavia, Burma, Byelorussian Soviet 
Socialist Republic, Canada, Chile, Colombia, 
Czechoslovakia, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, 
Liberia, Poland, Syria, Turkey, Ukrainian Soviet 
Socialist Republic. 

The amendment was adopted by 20 votes to 
13, with 15 abstentions. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (Mexico) withdrew his dele
gation's second amendment (A/C.3j417) to arti
cle 1 of the second draft convention, since the 
point had already been covered. 

The CHAIRMAN ruled that the Indian repre
sentative's proposal at the !96th meeting to de
lete, in the text of article B, the words "published 
in one or more newspapers or periodicals or 
disseminated by radio" (in document A/C.3/ 
W.14: "or by a broadcasting organization") and 
to replace them by the words "published or dis
semit~.ated" was simply a question of drafting. 

The amendment was therefore in order and 
he put it to the vote. 

The amendment was adopted by 33 votes to 
none, with 11 abstentions. 

Mr. KAHALI (Syria) supported the sugges
tions made by the representative of Lebanon at 
the current meeting and requested that they 
should be put to the vote. 

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) said that his point 
would be met if the text of the article were put 
to the vote in parts, so that those representa-

V otent contre: Liban, Pays-Bas, Nouvelle
Zelande, Nicaragua, Norvege, Panama, Perou, 
Philippines, Suede, Turquie, Union Sud-Afri
caine, Royaume-Uni, Etats-Unis d'Amerique, 
Venezuela, Australie, Belgique, Bresil, Canada, 
Chile, Chine, Colombie, Cuba, Danemark, Repu
blique Dominicaine, Equateur, France, Grece, 
Honduras. 

S'abstiennent: Inde, Iran, Mexique, Pakistan, 
Arabie saoudite, Siam, Syrie, Afghanistan, Argen
tine, Birmanie, Egypte, Guatemala, Haiti. 

Par 28 voix contre 6, avec 13 abstentions, 
l'amendement est rejete. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix l'amendement du 
Mexique (A/C.3/417), tendant a inserer, apres 
le mot "Etats", les mots "a son prestige ou a 
sa dignite nationale", au debut de !'article premier 
du deuxieme projet de convention. 

M. NORIEGA ( Mexique) demande que le vote 
ait lieu par appel nominal. 

Il est procede au vote par appel nominal. 
L'appel commence par l'Union Sud-Africaine, 

dont le nom est tire au sort par le President. 
V otent pour: Venezuela, Afghanistan, Argen

tine, Bresil, Chine, Cuba, Egypte, Guatemala, 
Haiti, Honduras, Inde, Iran, Liban, Mexique, 
Nicaragua, Pakistan, Panama, Perou, Arabie saou
dite, Siam. 

Votent contre: Union Sud-Africaine, Royaume
Uni, Etats-Unis d'Amerique, Australie, Belgique, 
Danemark, France, Grece, Pays-Bas, Nouvelle
lelande, N orvege, Philippines, Suede. 

S'abstiennent: Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques, Y ougoslavie, Birmanie, Republique 
socialiste sovietique de Bielorussie, Canada, Chili, 
Colombie, Tchecoslovaquie, Republique Domini
caine, Equateur, Liberia, Pologne, Syrie, Turquie, 
Republique socialiste sovietique d'Ukraine. 

Par 20 voix contre 13, avec 15 abstentions, 
l'amendement est adopte. 

M. NORIEGA ( Mexique) retire le second amen
dement (A/C.3j417) presente par sa delegation 
a !'article premier du deuxieme projet de con
vention, le point ayant deja ete traite. 

Le PRESIDENT decide que la proposition faite 
par la representante de l'Inde a la 196eme seance 
et visant a supprimer dans le texte de !'article B 
les mots: "publiees par un ou plusieurs journaux 
ou periodiques ou diffusees par la radio" (dans 
le document A/C.3jW.14: "ou diffusees par une 
organisation de radiodiffusion") et a les rem
placer par: "publiees ou diffusees", est d'ordre 
purement redactionnel. 

L'amendement est done recevable et il le met 
aux vmx. 

Par 33 voix contr' zero, avec 11 abstentions, 
l' amendement est ado pte. 

M. KAHALI ( Syrie) soutient les propositions 
soumises au cours de la seance par le representant 
du. Liban et demande qu'elles soient mises aux 
VOlX. 

M. AzKOUL (Liban) prec1se qu'il suffit de 
voter par division sur l'article, de fa<;on que les 
representants qui partagent ses vues puissent voter 



158 

tives who shared his views could vote against the 
two phrases to which he objected. 

The CHAIRMAN agreed to follow that proce
dure and accordingly called for a vote on the 
first two lines of the text, as amended: 

"In cases where a Contracting State alleges 
that news dispatches capable of injuring its re
lations with other States, or its national prestige 
and dignity ... " 

That text was adopted by 38 votes to none, 
with 7 abstentions. 

The CHAIRMAN then called for a vote on the 
following words: " ... transmitted from one coun
try to another by correspondents or information 
agencies of a Contracting or non-contracting State 
and ... " 

Those words were adopted by 34 votes to 3, 
with 8 abstentions. 

As the result of that vote had made it un
necessary to vote separately on the other phrase 
referred to by the representative of Lebanon, 
the CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the remainder 
of the text from the words "disseminated abroad" 
to the end. 

That text was adopted by 40 votes to 6. 

The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the 
amended text of the article as a whole. 

Mr. TERRou (France) requested that the arti
cle as a whole should be put to the vote by roll
call. 

A vote was taken by roll-call as follows: 
Burma, hlUl.Jing been drawn by lot by the 

Chairman, voted first. 
In favour: Burma, Canada, Chile, Colombia, 

Cuba, Denmark, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, 
Egypt, France, Greece, Guatemala, Haiti, Hon
duras, India, Iran, Lebanon, Liberia, Mexico, 
Netherlands, New Zealand, Nicaragua, Norway, 
Pakistan, Panama, Peru, Philippines, Saudi Ara
bia, Siam, Sweden, Turkey, Union of South 
Africa, United Kingdom, United States of Amer
ica, Venezuela, Afghanistan, Argentina, Aus
tralia, Belgium, Brazil. 

Against : Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Re
public, Czechoslovakia, Poland, Syria, Ukrainian 
Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet So
cialist Republics, Yugo!lavia. 

Abstaining: China. 
Article B was adopted by 40 votes to 7, with 

1 abstention. 

Mr. Charles Malik (Lebanon) took the chair. 

Article C (A/C.3j425) 1 

The CHAIRMAN announced that the basic text 
submitted by the French delegation (A/C.3j425) 
and the amendments submitted by Mexico (A/ 
C.J/417) and the United States (A/C.J/455) 
would be found in document A/C.J/468. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (Mexico) accepted the French 
proposal and withdrew his own amendment to 

1 Article X in the final text (A/C.3/496 and A/C.J/496/ 
Add. I). 

contre les deux membres de phrase auxquels il 
objecte. 

Le PRESIDENT accepte cette fac;on de proceder 
et met en consequence aux voix les trois premieres 
!ignes du texte, qui, apres amendement, se lisent 
comme suit: 

"Dans le cas ou un Etat contractant pretendrait 
fausses ou deformees les depeches d'information 
capables de nuire a ses relations avec d'autres 
Etats, a son prestige ou a sa dignite nationale ... " 

Par 38 voix contre zero, avec 7 abstentions, ce 
texte est adopte. 

Le PRESIDENT met alors aux voix les mots sui
vants: " ... transmises d'un pays a un autre par 
des correspondants ou des entreprises d'informa
tion d'un Etat contractant ou non et ... " 

Par 34 voix contre 3, avec 8 abstentions, ce 
texte est adopte. 

Le resulat du vote ayant fait disparaitre Ia 
necessite de voter par division sur !'autre membre 
de phrase auquel le representant du Liban a fait 
allusion, le PRESIDENT met aux voix le reste du 
texte, depuis les mots: "diffusees a l'etranger" 
jusqu'a Ia fin. 

Par 40 voix contre 6, ce texte est adopte. 

Le PRESIDENT met alors aux voix !'ensemble du 
texte amende de !'article. 

M. TERRou (France) demande que le vote sur 
!'ensemble de l'article ait lieu par appel nominal. 

I! est procede au vote par appel nominal. 
L'appel commence par la Birmanie, dont le nom 

est tire au sort par le President. 
Votent pour: Birmanie, Canada, Chili, Colombie, 

Cuba, Danemark, Republique Dominicaine, Equa
teur, Egypte, France, Grece, Guatemala, Haiti, 
Honduras, Inde, Iran, Liban, Liberia, Mexique, 
Pays-Bas, .Nouvelle-Ze!ande, Nicaragua, Norvege, 
Pakistan, Panama, Perou, Philippines, Arabie 
saoudite, Siam, Suede, Turquie, Union Sud-Afri
caine, Royaume-Uni, Etats-Unis d'Amerique, 
Venezuela, Afghanistan, Argentine, Australie, 
Belgique, Bresil. 

V otent contre: Republique socialiste sovietique 
de Bielorussie, Tchecoslovaquie, Pologne, Syrie, 
Republique socialiste sovietique d'Ukraine, Union 
des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, Y ougo
slavie. 

S' abstient: Ia Chine. 
Par 40 voix contre 7, avec une abstention, 

!'article B est adopte. 

M. Charles Malik ( Liban) prend place au 
fauteuil presidentiel. 

Article C (AjC.3j425) 1 

Le PRESIDENT indique que l'on trouvera le 
texte de base soumis par Ia delegation franc;aise 
(AjC.3j425), ainsi que les amendements presentes 
par le Mexique (A/C.3/417) et les Etats-Unis 
(AjC.3j455), dans le document A/C.3/468. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) se rallie a Ia proposi
tion franc;aise et retire son propre amendement 

1 Article X dans le texte definitif (A/C.J/496 et A/ 
C.3/ 496/ Add.! ) . 



159 

article 2, paragraph 1 of the second draft con
vention (A/C.3/417), since it no longer applied. 

Mrs. RooSEVELT (United States of America) 
explained that her amendment (A/C.3/455) to 
the text submitted by the representative of France 
was really only a question of translation. The 
word "release" was the current technical term 
and if the word "transmit" was used, it might 
imply that the Government would actually have 
to send copies of the communique to all the 
information agencies in its territory. 

Mr. TERROU (France) accepted the United 
States amendment on the understanding that it 
affected only the English text. 

Mrs. RAY (India) proposed that the word 
"Within" at the beginning of the text submitted 
by the French delegation should be replaced by 
the words: "With the least possible delay and 
in any case not later than". In that way the need 
for speed would be additionally stressed. 

Mr. TERROU (France) accepted that drafting 
change. 

He also accepted a suggestion by Mr. THEO
DOROPOULOS (Greece) that the word "communi
ques" should be in the singular instead of the 
plural in paragraph 2. 

In reply to a question by Mr. 0TANO VILA
NOVA (Argentina), Mr. Terrou explained that, 
in the event of any dispute arising out of the 
provisions of paragraph 2, it would be possible 
to have recourse to the arbitration of the Inter
national Court of Justice in accordance with the 
adopted text of article 10. 

At the request of Mr. GoNZALEZ FERNANDEZ 
(Colombia), the CHAIRMAN put the two para
graphs of the French proposal, as amended, to 
the vote separately. 

Paragraph 1 was adopted by 32 votes to 4, with 
4 abstentions. 

Paragraph 2 was adopted by 26 votes to 6, with 
5 abstentions. 

The CHAIRMAN put article C to the vote as 
a whole. 

Article C was adopted by 32 votes to 6, with 
3 abstentions. 

Article D (AjC.3j425) 1 

The CHAIRMAN ruled that as the United States 
amendment ( AjC.3 j455), proposing that the 
words "Such State" should be replaced by "The 
latter State", represented a drafting change which 
affected only the English text, it would be duly 
incorporated in the French proposal (A/C.3/425) 
for article D. 

Mr. TERROU (France) pointed out that his pro
posal was, in the main, a re-phrasing of article 3 
of the second draft convention, with the addi
tion only of a provision to the effect that the State 
complained against should be notified and given 
an opportunity to state its side of the case to the 

'Article XI in the final text (A/C.3/496). 

a !'article 2, paragraphe 1, du deuxieme projet 
de convention (A/C.3j417) puisqu'il n'a plus 
de raison d'etre. 

Mme RoosEVELT (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) 
explique que son amendement (A/C.3/455) au 
texte propose par le representant de Ia France ne 
porte en fait que sur une question de traduction. 
Le mot release est le terme technique courant en 
anglais, et l'emploi du mot transmit pourrait don
ner a penser que le gouvernement devrait envoyer 
effectivement des exemplaires du communique a 
toutes les entreprises d'information sur son terri
toire. 

M. TERROU (France) accepte l'amendement des 
Etats-Unis, etant entendu qu'il n'affecte que le 
texte anglais. 

Mme RA v ( Inde) propose que, au debut du 
texte propose par la delegation de la France, les 
mots: "Dans les cinq jours" soient remplaces 
par: "Dans le plus court delai possible et en tout 
cas dans les cinq jours". On soulignerait ainsi 
encore davantage la necessite de faire vite. 

M. TERROU (France) accepte cette modification 
de redaction. 

Il accepte egalement une suggestion presentee 
par M. THii:oDOROPOULOS (Grece) tendant a ce 
que le mot "communiques" soit employe au singu
lier dans le texte du paragraphe 2. 

En reponse a une question de M. 0TANO 
VILANOVA (Argentine), M. Terrou explique que, 
au cas ou les dispositions du paragraphe 2 donne
raient lieu a un differend, il serait possible d'avoir 
recours a !'arbitrage de la Cour internationale de 
Justice, conformement au texte adopte pour I' ar
ticle 10. 

A la requete de M. GoNzALEZ FERNANDEZ 
(Colombie)' le PRESIDENT met aux voix separe
ment les deux paragraphes ainsi amendes de Ia 
proposition de la France. 

Par 32 voi:c contre 4, avec 4 abstentions, le 
paragraphe 1 est adopte. 

Par 26 voi:c contre 6, avec 5 abstentions, le 
paragraphe 2 est adopte. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix l'ensemble de 
!'article C. 

Par 32 voi:c contre 6, avec 3 abstentions, ['article 
C est adopte. 

Article D (A/C.3/425)t 

Le PRESIDENT decide qu'etant donne que l'amen· 
dement des Etats-Unis (A/C.3j455) proposant 
de remplacer les mots: Such State par: The latter 
State constitue une modification de redaction n'in
teressant que le texte anglais, cet amendement sera 
incorpore dans le texte anglais de Ia proposition 
de Ia France (A/C.3j425) relative a !'article D. 

M. TERROU (France) souligne que Ia proposi· 
tion qu'il a presentee consiste essentiellement 
en une version remaniee du texte de !'article 3 
du deuxieme projet de convention, auquel elle 
n'ajoute que Ia disposition prevoyant que l'Etat 
qui a fait l'objet d'une plainte sera avise de ce 

1 Article XI dans le texte definiti£ (A/C.3/496). 



160 

Secretary-General of the United Nations. That 
procedure would be fair to both parties. 

Mr. LEBEAU (Belgium) called attention to the 
fact that articleD would directly affect the United 
Nations by entrusting the Secretary-General with 
a new function, that of dealing with complaining 
States and States complained against and of giving 
"appropriate publicity" to the original dispatch, 
the communique and the comments submitted to 
him by the State complained against. 

While Mr. Lebeau did not object to such a pro
cedure in principle, he feared that the words 
"appropriate publicity" might be given a very 
wide interpretation by the Department of Public 
Information of the United Nations, and that both 
undesirable publicity and additional costs might 
result. 

The convention would be an agreement between 
States; it would suffice for the Secretary-General 
to transmit, in writing, the relevant documents to 
the Governments of those States. Mr. Lebeau 
would suggest an amendment to that effect if, in 
the Chairman's opinion, it could be considered a 
drafting amendment. If not, he wished a part of 
the French proposal containing the words "ap
propriate publicity" to be put to the vote sep
arately, so that he might vote against it. 

The CHAIRMAN ruled that the Belgian amend
ment was one of substance and therefore could 
not be entertained. 

The vote would be taken in parts, as the Bel
gian representative had requested. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (Mexico) was grateful to the 
Belgian representative for calling attention to an 
important point. While he could not agree with 
Mr. Lebeau's comments regarding the Depart
ment of Public Information, which supplied the 
only fully impartial information currently avail
able, he thought that the Belgian representative's 
poi~t. would be m~t - at least so far as avoiding 
add1ttonal expenditure was concerned - if the 
phrase "through the information channels at his 
disposal" were inserted after the words "appro
priate publicity". No extra costs would then be 
incurred. 

Mrs. RoosEVELT (United States of America) 
and Mr. DAVIES (United Kingdom) supported 
the Mexican amendment, and stressed the fact 
that the Secretary-General should make the cor
rection of an inaccuracy or distortion known to 
the public rather than to Governments. 

Mr. TERROU (France) agreed with the three 
preceding speakers. The whole purpose of the 
articles dealing with the right of correction would 
be defeated if corrections did not receive the 
widest possible publicity. It was the general pub
lic, who had presumably read the original dis
patch, that should be made aware of the true facts 
in the case, and not merely the Governments. 

Mr. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands) 
fully shared that view. He pointed out that, in 

fait et pourra presenter sa version de !'affaire au 
Secretaire general de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies. Cette procedure serait equitable pour les 
deux parties. 

M. LEBEAU (Belgique) souligne que !'article 
D interesserait de fa<;on directe !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies, puisqu'il confierait a son Secn~
taire general une fonction nouvelle: celle de 
traiter avec Ies Etats qui deposent des plaintes 
et les Etats qui font !'objet de ces plaintes, et 
de donner "la publicite appropriee" a !'informa
tion primitivement publiee, au communique, ainsi 
qu'aux observations qui auront pu lui etre sou
mises par l'Etat qui a fait !'objet de la plainte. 

Tout en ne s'opposant pas en principe a cette 
procedure, M. Lebeau craint que les mots "publi
cite appropriee" ne soient interpretes dans un 
sens tres large par le Departement de !'informa
tion de !'Organisation des Nations Unies et qu'il 
n'en resulte une publicite regrettable, en meme 
temps qu'un supplement de depenses. 

La convention sera un accord entre Etats ; il 
suffirait done que le Secretaire general transmit 
par ecrit aux gouvernements de ces Etats les 
documents qui se rapportent a !a question. 
M. Lebeau desirerait presenter un amendement a 
cet effet, si Ie President estime que cet amendement 
pourrait etre considere comme redactionnel. Au 
cas contraire, M. Lebeau aimerait que la partie 
de l'amendement de la France dans laquelle 
figurent Ies mots "publicite appropriee" fasse !'ob
jet d'un vote separe, de fa<;on qu'il puisse s'opposer 
a son adoption. 

Le PRESIDENT decide que !a proposition beige 
porte sur Ie fond de !a question et ne peut done 
etre examinee par Ia Commission. 

II sera procede au vote par division, conforme
ment a la demande du representant de la Belgique. 

M. NORIEGA (Mexique) remercie le represen
tant de la Belgique d'avoir attire !'attention de 
la Commission sur un point important. II ne 
partage pas !'opinion de M. Lebeau sur le Departe
ment de !'information, qui fournit les seules infor
mations entierement impartiales dont on dispose; 
cependant, il serait possible de repondre a !'objec
tion soulevee par le representant de la Belgique
du moins en ce qui concerne les frais supplemen
taires a eviter - en inserant a la suite des mots : 
"publicite appropriee" !'expression: "par les 
moyens de diffusion dont il dispose". Ainsi, il 
n'y aurait pas de frais supplementaires. 

Mme RoosEVELT (Etats Unis d'Amerique) et 
M. DAVIES (Royaume-Uni) appuient la proposi
tion du Mexique et soulignent que c'est le public, 
plutot que les gouvernements, que le Secretaire 
general devra informer des rectifications apportees 
a des informations fausses ou deformees. 

M. TERROU (France) partage !'avis des trois 
orateurs precedents. Les articles relatifs au droit 
de rectification manqueraient entierement leur 
but si les rectifications ne faisaient pas !'objet de 
la publicite la plus large. C'est au grand public 
qui, sans doute, a pris connaissance des informa
tions primitivement publiees, et non aux gouverne
ments seuls, que la verite sur les faits doit etre 
communiquee. 

M. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Pays-Bas) est 
entierement de cet avis. II souligne que, pour se 



161 

order to conform with previously adopted termi~ 
nology, the word "report", whenever it occurred 
in the English text of article D, should be replaced 
by "dispatch". 

The CHAIRMAN stated that that change would 
be made. 

Mr. LEBEAU (Belgium) maintained his view. 
The convention would be concluded between Gov~ 
ernments ; complaints would be made with re
spect to dispatches which were presumably in~ 
jurious to Governments ; it should therefore be 
sufficient to notify Governments of any action 
taken under article D. 

The purport and the exact application of the 
second paragraph of the French proposal, reading 
as follows: 

"This paragraph shall come into force as soon 
as the General Assembly has instructed the Sec
retary-General to perform this duty", were not 
clear to him. 

Mr. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands) 
remarked that the paragraph had originally been 
adopted by the Conference on Freedom of Infor
mation/ which had not had the power to confer 
a new function upon the Secretary~General of the 
United Nations. The General Assembly did not. 
however, need to adopt that paragraph; by ap
proving the preceding paragraph of the French 
proposal, it would automatically empower the Sec
retary-General to discharge the new duties in 
question. 

Mr. TERROU (France) accordingly withdrew 
the second paragraph of his proposal. 

Mr. RAo (India) proposed the addition, in 
article D, after the words "to fulfil its obligations 
under article 2" of the phrase, "but may include 
the explanation of the correspondent or the in
formation agency responsible fQr the original 
dispatch". Inasmuch as, under article B, a copy 
of the communique would be sent to the corre
spondent or the information agency in question, 
it seemed proper to provide for a possibility of 
explanation on their part. If a complaining State 
issued a correction which was either technical in 
character or of minor importance, the State com
plained against might wish to avail itself of such 
material to explain its position. 

Mr. DAVIES (United Kingdom) and Mr. TER
ROU (France) supported the Indian amendment. 

Mr. AzKouL (Lebanon) thought that the In
dian amendment might open the door to further 
controversy by permitting the correspondent or in
formation agency to make a statement containing 
additional inaccuracies or distortions, which 
would once more be challenged by the complaining 
State. Moreover, as no action would be taken 
against the correspondent or information agency 
concerned beyond the rectification of the original 
dispatch, there seemed to be no good reason for 
permitting them to have the last word. 

1 See document E/Conf.6/C.l!SR.28. 

conformer a la terminologie adoptee anterieure
ment, il conviendrait de remplacer le mot report, 
chaque fois qu'il figure dans le texte anglais de 
!'article D, par dispatch. 

Le PRESIDENT declare que cette modification 
sera effectuee. 

M. LEBEAU (Belgique) maintient son point de 
vue. La convention sera conclue entre des gou
vernements ; les plaintes deposees concemeront 
des informations considerees comme diffamantes 
a l'egard des gouvernements; il suffirait done d'in
former les gouvernements de toute mesure prise 
en application de !'article D. 

M. Lebeau ne discerne pas le but et la portee 
exacte du second paragraphe de l'amendement 
de la France, dont voici le texte: 

"Le present paragraphe entrera en vigueur des 
que l'Assemblee generale des Nations Unies aura 
donne au Secretaire general le mandat de s'acquit~ 
ter de cette tache." 

M. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Pays-Bas) fait 
observer que ce paragraphe a ete primitivement 
adopte par la Conference sur la liberte de !'infor
mation\ qui n'etait pas habilitee a conferer une 
nouvelle fonction au Secretaire general de !'Orga
nisation des Nations Unies. Il n'est toutefois pas 
necessaire que 1' Assemblee generale adopte ce 
paragraphe; !'adoption du premier paragraphe de 
la proposition de la France permettra automatique~ 
ment au Secretaire general de s'acquitter des nou
velles fonctions en question. 

M. TERROU (France) retire le second para
graphe de sa proposition. 

M. RAo (Inde) propose d'ajouter dans le 
texte de !'article D, apres les mots: "des obliga
tions qui lui incombent en vertu de !'article 2", les 
mots: "ces observations peuvent toutefois conte
nir les explications du correspondant ou de 1' entre
prise d'information responsables de la publication 
de !'information primitive". Etant donne que, en 
vertu de !'article B, un exemplaire du communique 
sera envoye au correspondant ou a l'entreprise 
d'information en question, il semble normal d'assu
rer a !'interesse la possibilite de fournir une 
explication. Si l'Etat qui a depose une plainte 
publie une rectification qui p'resente un caractere 
technique ou n'a qu'une importance secondaire, 
l'Etat qui fait l'objet de la plainte peut desirer 
utiliser de telles explications pour justifier sa 
position. 

M. DAVIES (Royaume-Uni) et M. TERROU 
(France) appuient l'amendement de l'Inde. 

Selon M. AzKOUL (Liban), l'amendement pro
pose par la delegation de l'Inde pourrait ouvrir 
la porte a de nouvelles controverses, en permet~ 
tant au correspondant ou a l'entreprise d'informa
tion de faire une declaration contenant de 
nouvelles inexactitudes ou deformations, qui sou
leveraient une fois de plus les protestations de 
l'Etat plaignant. En outre, comme ni le correspon~ 
dant ni l'entreprise d'information interessee ne 
feront l'objet de sanctions autres que !'obligation 
de rectifier la depeche initiale, il semble qu'il 
n'y ait aucune raison valable de leur permettre 
d'avoir le dernier mot. 

1 Voir le document E/Con£.6/C.l/SR.ZS. 



162 

Mr. FouRrE (Union of South Africa) asso
ciated himself with that view. 

Mr. JocKEL (Australia) thought that the In
dian amendment introduced a change of substance 
and was therefore not acceptable. 

Mr. RAo (India) pointed out that the words 
suggested in his amendment would be governed 
by the preceding clause which made it clear that 
the suggested explanation could refer only to the 
precise subject unCier consideration. N everthe
Iess, in order to expedite the Committee's work, 
he withdrew his amendment. 

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the Mexican 
amendment proposing the insertion, after the 
words "appropriate publicity" in article D, of the 
phrase, "through the information channels at his 
disposal". 

The amendment 'WaS adopted by 32 votes to 
5, with 1 abstention. 

The CHAIRMAN stated that, as requested by 
the Belgian and Lebanese representatives, article 
D would be put to the vote in parts. 

He put to the vote the first part of article D, 
from the beginning up to and including the words 
"after receiving the communique". 

That part ·u.:as adopted by 31 votes to 4, with 
2 abstentions. 

He put to the vote the words "give appropriate 
publicity through the information channels at his 
disposal". 

That part was adopted by 39 votes to 5, with 
2 abstentions. 

He put to the vote the words "to the original 
dispatch". 

Those words were adopted by 37 votes to 3, 
with 2 abstentions. 

He put to the vote the words "the communique, 
and the comments, if any, submitted to him by 
the State complained against". 

Those words were adopted by 30 votes to 4, 
with 2 abstentions. 

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the amended 
text of article D as a whole. 

Article D was adopted by 31 votes to 4, with 
2 abstention.r. 

Mr. TERROU (France) withdrew his proposed 
article E ( A/C.3 /425), inasmuch as its sub
stance was fully covered in article 11 of the first 
draft convention (E/1065). 

Mr. SuLTAN (Egypt) withdrew his amend
ment (A/C.3/456) to the original article 4 of 
the draft convention on the institution of an 
international right of correction, on the same 
grounds. 

The meeting rose at 6.40 p.m. 

M. FouRIE (Union Sud-Africaine) se range a 
cette opinion. 

l\1. J OCKEL ( Australie) estime que I' amen de
ment de l'Inde constitue une modification de fond 
et n'est done pas recevable. 

M. RAo (In de) fait valoir que les mots que 
propose son amendement dependraient de Ia pro
position grammaticale precedente, qui etablit in
contestablement que !'explication proposee ne peut 
se rapporter qu'a Ia question precise qui est en 
cours d'examen. Neanmoins, afin d'accelerer Ies 
travaux de Ia Commission, il retire son amende
ment. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix I'amendement du 
Mexique visant a inserer dans !'article D, apres 
les mots: "publicite appropriee", Ia formule: "par 
les moyens de diffusion dont il dispose". 

Par 32 voix contre 5, avec une abstention, 
l'amendement est adopte. 

Le PRESIDENT annonce que, conformement a 
Ia demande des representants de Ia Belgique et 
du Liban, il sera procede au vote par division 
sur !'article D. 

II met aux voix Ia premiere partie de !'article 
D, c'est-a-dire du debut jusques et y compris 
les mots : "qui suivront Ia date de reception du 
communique". 

Par 31 voix contre 4, avec 2 abstentions, cette 
partie de !'article est adoptee. 

II met aux voix les mots: "donner Ia publicite 
appropriee par les moyens de diffusion dont il 
dispose". 

Par 39 voix contre 5, avec 2 abstentions, cette 
partie de l'article est adoptee. 

II met aux voix les mots : "a !'information 
primitivement publiee". 

Par 37 voix contre 3, avec 2 abstentions, ces 
mots sont a.doptes. 

II met aux voix les mots : "au communique, 
ainsi qu'aux observations qui auront pu lui etre 
soumises par l'Etat qui a fait !'objet de la plainte". 

Par 30 voix contre 4, avec 2 abstentions, ces 
mots sont a.doptes. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix !'ensemble du texte 
amende de !'article D. 

Par 31 voix contre 4, avec 2 abstentions, /'article 
D est adopte. 

M. TERROU (France) retire son pro jet de !'ar
ticle E (A/C.3j425), car celui-ci fait double 
emploi, quant au fond, avec !'article 11 du premier 
projet de convention (E/1065). 

Pour des raisons analogues, M. SuLTAN 
(Egypte) retire son amendement (A/C.3/456) 
au texte initial de !'article 4 du projet de con
vention relatif a !'institution du droit de rectifi
cation en matiere internationale. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 40. 




